Questions and Responses NND11372360Q – UPDATED ON FEBRUARY 24, 2011
1.  Does this application require International Traffic in Arms Regulation (ITAR) guidelines to be followed?

Yes

2. Is the Computer Aided Design (CAD), referenced in Section 3 of the solicitation, going to be used or any of the following tests:  Finite Element Analysis (FEA); Computational Fluid Dynamics (CFD); FECO
FEA: Possibly

CFD: Yes

FECO: No
3. The accuracy of the scan data is going to be better than +/-.010” but how accurate do you need the CAD model?

We are waiting for additional information to provide a response to this question.  We will have a response by February 22, 2011 and will update this document once we do.
Updated Response on February 24, 2011:  Some of the gaps in-between the panels on the fuselage are on the order of 0.020”, that’s why the accuracy of the scan data needs to be better than +/- 0.010”.  It is not necessary to actually measure the gaps, but I do need to have the panel located in the CAD model.  The CAD model should be accurate to +/- 0.050”.  

Things not needed in the CAD model:

Screws; steps/waves in the aircraft skin; recessed handles.

Things needed in the CAD model:

Fuselage panels (locations); small radomes; control surfaces (thru range of angles); lights; antenna/fins; pitot probes.

4. Are there certain critical features that need to maintain a higher level of accuracy than others?

No

5. Would you like the CAD model to show any warping, bending, shrinkage, etc. that was not originally intended to be included in the design-intent version of the UAV?

NASA’s requirement is for an as-is model.  A design-intent version is desirable, but not required.
6. What is the diameter of the air intake hole that gives access to scan the areas leading to the engine fan face?
We are waiting for additional information to provide a response to this question.  We will have a response by February 22, 2011 and will update this document once we do.

Updated Response on February 24, 2011:  Engine description:  The engine fan face is located 74 ¾ ” inside the inlet from the bottom inlet lip.  The inlet at the engine fan face is 38.5” diameter.  The inside dimension of the inlet hole is 28 ¾ ” high, and 40” wide.  
7. In the solicitation, two NASA Global Hawk UAVs are mentioned. Is it necessary to perform scanning on both UAVs to compare the two to obtain deviation information to be used for determining the exact dimensions for CAD model creation?

Only one UAV will be measured; it is not necessary to perform scanning on both UAVs.

8. What is the color and general reflectivity of the UAV that will be used for scanning?

The color of the UAV is dark grey (matte) and white (semi-gloss).  
9. If a spray on talcum powder would be required for surface preparation using our 3D laser scanning equipment, would this be acceptable?

This is a composite aircraft.  Any substance to be applied to the aircraft must be approved in advance to ensure it will not harm the aircraft.  A Material Data Safety Sheet (MSDS) of the substance must be submitted for approval, which will be reviewed by both Technical and Safety Personnel.
10. When viewing the raw scan data files in ASCI or CSV format, what software program will you be using?

MATLAB, MS Excel and Tecplot

11. Based on the specific timing requirements, quote deadline of Feb 18th and scanning completion deadline of March 1st, what specific five day period is the UAV going to be available for scanning at your facility?
Quotation deadline has been extended to February 28, 2011.  The Solicitation has been updated to reflect a new deadline to have the scan completed.  The scan must be completed by April 1, 2011, with a model due within 30 business days after the scan has been completed.  NASA will work with the successful offeror to coordinate the specific scanning schedule.

12. When delivering data that shows the projects that we’ve worked on in the past, we may have issues with proprietary data; most of the applications that we’ve done that require this size of scanning object and accuracy are confidential to the customer that we complete the work for. If we were to be able to provide general information on scanning experience of aircraft and possibly share a case study of previous work completed, would this be sufficient for communication?

Yes, this information would be sufficient for communication for these types of circumstances.

13. Will there be ground support equipment provided? For example: boom lifts, ladders or scissor lifts are frequently needed to perform this type of measurement.  Will NASA have this type of equipment available is the basic question, or will the contractor need to plan for this?

Basic ground support equipment should be available.  If the contractor provides a list of what is required, NASA can provide a more definitive answer if such equipment is available.  NASA can make available boom lifts, ladders and scissor lifts, if necessary.

14. Does NASA want an archival model (as-built or should the model reflect engineering intent? Example:  if the wings show that there is a twist, should that remain in the model or should the engineering intent of a non-twisted wing be interpreted and applied?

NASA’s requirement is for an as-is model.  A design-intent version is desirable, but not required.
15. Will the aircraft be staged in flight configuration? Will the wings be loaded to simulate flight conditions?
The aircraft will be staged in a neutral position.

16. To what level of detail should the model be created? As an example, does NASA want small lights, any recessed handles or steps in the aircraft skin to be modeled?

We are waiting for additional information to provide a response to this question.  We will have a response by February 22, 2011 and will update this document once we do.

Updated Response on February 24, 2011:  Some of the gaps in-between the panels on the fuselage are on the order of 0.020”, that’s why the accuracy of the scan data needs to be better than +/- 0.010”.  It is not necessary to actually measure the gaps, but I do need to have the panel located in the CAD model.  The CAD model should be accurate to +/- 0.050”.  

Things not needed in the CAD model:

Screws; steps/waves in the aircraft skin; recessed handles.

Things needed in the CAD model:

Fuselage panels (locations); small radomes; control surfaces (thru range of angles); lights; antenna/fins; pitot probes.

17. While per the solicitation, symmetry is stated as assumed.  Should some basic symmetry measurements be planned for?
Symmetry is stated as assumed for our requirement.  Some basic symmetry is desirable, but not required.   
18. Is there a specification for the aircraft coordinate system?  Are there benchmarks on the aircraft to achieve this?

The aircraft coordinate system and specific benchmarks will be available for release to the successful offeror.
19. How many hours per day will the aircraft be accessible?  Will it be possible to work 24 hours per day?
The aircraft will be available from 4 p.m. to 8:00 a.m. for five straight days to accomplish the scan.  Actual scanning must occur between 6:00 p.m. and 6:00 a.m. on those five days.
20. What color is the aircraft? Is it NASA white or military green? Is the finish glossy or matte? Are spray developers allowed?

The aircraft is dark grey (matte) and white (semi-gloss).  This is a composite aircraft.  Any substance to be applied to the aircraft must be approved in advance to ensure it will not harm the aircraft.  A Material Data Safety Sheet (MSDS) of the substance must be submitted for approval, which will be reviewed by both Technical and Safety Personnel.

21. Would it be possible to obtain high level photos of the aircraft that are suitable for general planning purposes?

If requested, NASA can provide a photograph of the aircraft from a scissor lift.
22. It states in the SOW that the scan will be completed by March 2011.  Is this a fixed schedule? Or is it based off when the order has been completed? 

The Solicitation has been updated to reflect a new deadline to have the scan completed.  The scan must be completed by April 1, 2011, with a model due within 30 business days after the scan has been completed.  NASA will work with the successful offeror to coordinate the specific scanning schedule.
